
Agenda 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, May 11, 2022 - 5:30 p.m. 

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 

Yuba City, CA  95993 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of 
Schools Office Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday – excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools’ website at www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
 
   June McJunkin, President 
   Victoria Lachance, Vice President 
   Jim Richmond, Member 
   Harjit Singh, Member 
   Ronald Turner, Member 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the 
Board regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California 
Government Code, Section 54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be 
taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 
 

  5.0 Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting    
   [Action Item] 

 
   The minutes of the April 13, 2022, Regular Meeting of the   
   Sutter County Board of Education are presented for approval. 
 
  6.0 IT Department Update – Chris Osborne 
 
  7.0 SCSOS A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
   Brian Gault [Action Item] 
 
   The purpose of the A-G Improvement Grant is to increase the  
   number of California high school pupils who graduate with A-G  
   eligibility. Funds are available for expenditure or encumbrance  

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  
May 11, 2022 
 
   through the 2025–26 fiscal year. Each grant recipient was   
   required submit their A-G Plan to CDE by April 1, 2022 
 
  8.0 Pathways Charter Academy A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
   Brian Gault [Action Item] 
 
   The purpose of the A-G Improvement Grant is to increase the  
   number of California high school pupils who graduate with A-G  
   eligibility. Funds are available for expenditure or encumbrance  
   through the 2025–26 fiscal year. Each grant recipient was   
   required submit their A-G Plan to CDE by April 1, 2022 
         
         9.0 Business Services Report 

 9.1 Monthly Financial Report – April 2022– Nic Hoogeveen  
 9.2 Investment Statement – January 31, 2022 – Ron Sherrod 
 9.3 Surplus Inventory – Ron Sherrod 
 9.4 Donations – Ron Sherrod 
 9.5 Facilities Update – Ron Sherrod 
  

                10.0  Approve the 2022-2023 School Year Calendar for Feather River 
 Academy – Brian Gault [Action Item] 

 
 11.0 Approve the 2022-2023 School Calendar for Pathways Charter  
   Academy – Brian Gault [Action Item] 
 

       12.0   Resolution No. 21-22-XII Adopting Conflict of Interest Code 
    Tom Reusser [Action Item] 
 
    The County Board shall adopt a resolution that specifies the terms 

  of its Conflict of Interest Code, designates any consultant  
  positions required to complete Conflict of Interest reporting and 
  establishes disclosure categories required for each position. 

 
 13.0   Approve Legal Services Agreement between the Board and Lozano 

  Smith, Attorneys at Law – Tom Reusser – [Action Item] 
 

  14.0 Quarterly Report on Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaints  
   (January 1, 2022 – March 31, 2022) – Brian Gault 
 
   Education Code 35186 requires the county superintendent to 

 report on the number and nature of complaints filed for: 
 

1) Textbooks and instructional materials 
2) Teacher vacancies or mis-assignments 
3) Facilities and conditions 

 
   There were no complaints filed during the period of January – 
   March 2022. 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  
May 11, 2022 
 
 

 
 15.0   WASC Self-Study Feather River Academy 
    Brian Gault 
 
    The Self-Study Visit was conducted April 25 – 27, 2022.  The 

  accreditation status recommendation, along with a summary of 
  the visiting committee’s findings, are being presented. 

        
 16.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board 

 
 17.0 Adjournment   
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board Meeting 
room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, 
please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board Meeting and 
to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath 
Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   5.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Minutes of the April 13, 2022, Regular Board  
                                          Meeting 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          May 11, 2022        
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
  Maggie Nicoletti   
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Tom Reusser   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Tom Reusser   
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The minutes of the regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education held  
April 13, 2022, are presented for approval. 
 
 
 



Unapproved     
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 
April 13, 2022 

 
1.0  Call to Order 

A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education was called to order by 
President McJunkin, 5:30 p.m., April 13, 2022, at the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, California. 

  
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Trustee Lachance.  
 
3.0 Roll call of Members 
  June McJunkin, President – Present  
 Victoria Lachance, Vice President – Present  
 Jim Richmond, Member - Present  
 Harjit Singh, Member – Present 
 Ron Turner, Member – Absent 
  
 Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary – Present 
 

Staff Members Present: Nic Hoogeveen, Lisa Gault, Eric Pomeroy, Angela Huerta, 
Joe Hendrix, Brian Gault and Maggie Nicoletti 

   
4.0 Items of Public Interest to come to the attention of the Board 
 None. 
 
5.0 Approve Minutes of the March 9, 2022, Regular Meeting   
 A motion was made to approve the minutes of the March 9, 2022, regular 

meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education.  
 

  Motion: Richmond   Seconded: Lachance 
 Action:  Motion Carried  
 Ayes:   4 (McJunkin, Richmond, Singh and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   1 (Turner)   Abstain: 0 
 
6.0 Tri-County Induction Program (TCIP) Update 
 Lisa Gault, Director of TCIP, presented a PowerPoint to the Board outlining the 
 Tri-County Induction Program. 
 
6.1 Sutter County Adult Education – WASC Action Plan 
 Eric thanked Angela Huerta and his staff for their hard work on this project along 
 with community members.  He reviewed the School Wide Action Plan with the 
 Board.  Eric stated that the WASC Committee will be here May 1 – May 4, 2022. 
 Discussion continued regarding the Action Plan and pertinent questions were 
 asked and answered.  This is an information item; the agenda stated that it was 
 an action item (it is an Action Plan).   
 
7.0 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 
 Brian stated this was brought to the Board for approval in December; there is no 
 requirement to bring it back to the Board; however, there were changes made and 
 he wanted to inform the Board.  Brian also stated that changes were made to the 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 
April 13, 2022 
 

 document after the Board Packet was sent out.  He reviewed the changes with the 
 Board.  
 
8.0 Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant 
 Brian stated this was approved by the Board in May 2021 and minor 

adjustments have been made since then.  He reviewed the changes in the 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant with the Board. 

 
9.0    Business Services Report 
 9.1 Monthly Financial Report – March 2022 – Nic reviewed the monthly financial 

report with the Board.   
 
10.0 Approval of Lease Extension with Coscarat Living Trust 
 Superintendent Reusser stated that he needs James to get the training center 

ready for cosmetology classes and stated this is a priority.  He asked the Board to 
approve the lease extension; once the cosmetology classes are set up, we can 
focus on the new building and get everyone moved in.  

 
  Motion: Richmond   Seconded: Singh 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   4  (McJunkin, Lachance, Singh and Richmond)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   1 (Turner)   Abstain: 0 
 
 
11.0  Quarterly Facilities Projects Update 
 James reviewed the information that was included in the Board Packet.  

Government Financial Strategies will be providing the money/loan for the new 
building.  When we know that is happening, we will send out RFQs.  The Board 
will be informed along the way.  James stated that a lot of the clearing that needs 
to be done at Shady Creek will be done by SCSOS. 

 
12.0 The SCSOS A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
 Brian stated the total grant allocation is $150,000.00.  Looking at the 

opportunities these funds could support, staff identified a desire to develop 
pathways to support students to take and complete more A-G courses.  When 
these courses are completed, students can directly apply to a university.  Brian 
stated they will explore keeping Edgenuity for the A-G courses.  FRA teachers 
would require professional development related to teaching A-G approved courses 
and the implementation of AVID.  This money must be spent in five years.  
Discussion continued. This will be brought to the Board next month.  Discussed 
DHH students and the possibility of this helping them. 

 
13.0 The Pathways Charter Academy A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
 Brian stated that PCA is a non-classroom based school and, currently, PCA does 

not have any students enrolled in A-G certified courses.  He is hoping more 
students will become interested.  AVID will be explored as an opportunity to build 
skills necessary to be successful in A-G courses.  The total grant allocation for 
PCA is $150,000.00 and must be spent in five years.   

                    



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 
April 13, 2022 
 

14.0 The following Board Bylaws are presented for a second reading and Board 
 approval: 

• Board Bylaw 9220 – Governing Board Elections 
• Board Bylaw 9270 – Conflict of Interest 

 
 A motion was made to approve revisions to Board Bylaw 9220 and Board Bylaw 
 9270.    
 
  Motion: Richmond   Seconded: Lachance 
 Action:  Motion Carried  
 Ayes:   4 (McJunkin, Richmond, Singh and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   1 (Turner)   Abstain: 0 
 
15.0 Sutter County Board of Education Strategic Plan and Goals 
 The Sutter County Board of Education Strategic Plan and Goals was approved by 
 the Board October 19, 2019.  The Board would like to review/revise the 
 document at the July 2022 Board Meeting and bring it back to the Board for 
 approval in August  2022.  It was stated that almost everything on the document 
 has been accomplished.   
   
16.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board 
 Superintendent Reusser reported on the following: 

• Kristi Johnson suggested that SCSOS promotes an Educator of the Year 
Award Ceremony.  The event will be held at Peach Tree Golf and Country 
Club on May 24, 2022.  Each district is allowed to select two recipients for 
the award; certificated or non-certificated.  Schools First Federal Credit 
Union has offered a $4500.00 sponsorship for the event. 

• We are getting help with the CTC grant and we are auditing our program 
and auditing the audit.  Butte College has not been very open to 
corresponding with us.  Tom and Joe met with Assemblyman James 
Gallagher and Senator Jim Nielsen regarding new legislation; they want to 
take the control of these grants out of the hands of the community 
colleges.  This may be a long process.   

• June and Vicky went to the CCBE Workshop March 11 – March 12, 2022.  
They brought pamphlets back from the event and both stated is was a very 
good workshop.  Vicky stated that Placer County Office of Education sends 
out a calendar to the Board so that all Board Members know of events 
happening throughout the county office.  Tom stated he would look into 
this for our Board Members.   

  
17.0  Adjournment   
  A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:54 p.m. 
 
  Motion: Richmond   Seconded: Lachance 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   4 (McJunkin, Lachance, Singh and Richmond)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   1 (Turner)   Abstain: 0 
   



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 
April 13, 2022 
 

 
           



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  6.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Information Technology (IT) Department Update 
                                        
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   May 11, 2022                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
        Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
     Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Chris Osborne  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Chris Osborne  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
    Chris Osborne  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
  
Chris Osborne, IT Director, will present a department overview to the 
Board. 
 
 
 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  ___7.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  SCSOS A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   May 11, 2022               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    x  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Brian Gault, John Kovach, Kristi 
Johnson 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Brian Gault   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
  
The purpose of the A-G Improvement Grant is to increase the number of California high school 
pupils who graduate with A-G eligibility. Funds are available for expenditure or encumbrance 
through the 2025–26 fiscal year. Each grant recipient was required submit their A-G Plan to CDE 
by April 1, 2022. A-G Completion Improvement Plans, once developed, will need to be 
discussed and approved at two separate Board meetings. 
 
The SCSOS A-G Completion Improvement Plan is being presented for approval.  
 
 



A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Total Grant Allocation

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools $ 150,000
$75,000 - Learning Loss MItigation
$75,000 - Access

Contact Person Name and Title Contact Person Email

Brian Gault-  Assistant Superintendent, Educational
Services

BrianG@sutter.k12.ca.us

LEA Description

SCSOS operates moderate/severe SDC classes and Feather River Academy, a County Community School.
In consultation with Special Education staff, it was determined that A-G completion and access is not a
pathway that students in our programs frequently pursue. Students qualified to pursue A-G pathways are
mainstreamed at a comprehensive high school with resource specialist support. While one of the main goals
at Feather River Academy is to support students' behavioral growth, A-G completion and access to courses
is not traditionally a pathway explored by students.  However, in looking at the opportunities these funds
could support, staff identified a desire to develop pathways to support  students who enroll having already
initiated this pathway at a previous school. In order to do this, 2021-22 and 2022-23 will be used to explore
resources and develop a more comprehensive plan.

Plan Descriptions
Describe how the funds will support pupils in danger of not achieving a “C” or better in A-G courses.
Currently, Feather River Academy does not have any students enrolled in A-G certified courses.  However,
the vision for the future is to offer some A-G courses and support students through  increased school day,
extended school day and tutoring opportunities.   Quarterly Individual Learning Plan (ILP) progress
monitoring is a standard practice for all students. Students enrolled in A-G courses would participate in



monthly check-ins with counselors where additional supports would be identified.

Describe how the plan and described services, and associated expenditures, if applicable, supplement
services in the Local Control and Accountability Plan and Learning Recovery Plan.

A-G is not currently addressed as a goal or action in any current plans.  While counseling and tutoring
services are included in the LCAP, both refer to supporting students' behavioral needs, while new funding will
be more academically focused.

Describe how the funds will support pupils, including tutoring programs, to improve the LEA’s A-G completion
rate.

Staff will be exploring how increased academic counseling supporting a refined intake and Individual
Learning Plan process, could be used to promote and support A-G enrollment and completion.  While
quarterly progress monitoring is a standard practice, students enrolled in A-G courses will participate in
monthly check-ins with counselors.  In addition, while the Edgenuity curriculum will not be used as a core
program in 22-23, we will explore keeping Edgenuity for the A-G courses in the event a student qualifies for
that pathway.   AVID will also be explored as an opportunity to build skills necessary to be successful in A-G
courses.  FRA teachers would require professional development related to teaching A-G approved courses
and the implementation of AVID. Tutoring services and/or extended school day would be offered to students
enrolled in A-G courses.



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  8.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Pathways Charter Academy A-G Completion Improvement Plan 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   May 11, 2022               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    x  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Brian Gault, John Kovach,  
Kristi Johnson 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Brian Gault   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
  
The purpose of the A-G Improvement Grant is to increase the number of California high 
school pupils who graduate with A-G eligibility. Funds are available for expenditure or 
encumbrance through the 2025–26 fiscal year. Each grant recipient was required submit 
their A-G Plan to CDE by April 1, 2022. A-G Completion Improvement Plans, once 
developed, will need to be discussed and approved at two separate Board meetings. 
 
The Pathways Charter Academy A-G Completion Improvement Plan is being presented for 
approval.  
 
 



A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Total Grant Allocation

Pathways Charter Academy $ 150,000
$75,000 - Learning Loss MItigation
$75,000 - Access

Contact Person Name and Title Contact Person Email

Brian Gault-  Assistant Superintendent, Educational
Services

BrianG@sutter.k12.ca.us

LEA Description

Pathways Charter Academy (PCA) is a non-classroom based County Community School.  PCA serves
students who are not typically successful in a traditional school environment. Oftentimes students are not
focused on A-G related goals. Therefore PCA has focused primarily to support students' social emotional
and behavioral growth. However, in looking at the opportunities these funds could support, staff identified a
desire to develop pathways to support  students who enroll having already initiated this pathway at a
previous school. In order to do this, 2021-22 and 2022-23 will be used to explore resources and develop a
more comprehensive plan.

Plan Descriptions
Describe how the funds will support pupils in danger of not achieving a “C” or better in A-G courses.
Currently, PCA does not have any students enrolled in A-G certified courses.  However, the vision for the
future is to offer and support the enrollement in A-G courses  through  increased school day, extended
school day and tutoring opportunities. Quarterly Individual l Learning Plan (ILP) progress monitoring is a
standard practice for all students. Students enrolled in A-G courses would participate in monthly check-ins
with counselors where additional supports would be identified.



Describe how the plan and described services, and associated expenditures, if applicable, supplement
services in the Local Control and Accountability Plan and Learning Recovery Plan.

A-G is not currently addressed as a goal or action in any current plans.  While counseling and tutoring
services are included in the LCAP, both refer to supporting students' behavioral needs, while new funding will
be more academically focused.

Describe how the funds will support pupils, including tutoring programs, to improve the LEA’s A-G completion
rate.

Staff will be exploring how increased academic counseling supporting a refined intake and Individual
Learning Plan process, could be used to promote and support A-G enrollment and completion.  While
quarterly progress monitoring is a standard practice, students enrolled in A-G courses will participate in
monthly check-ins with counselors. Since the Edgenuity curriculum is used as a core program, the ability to
provide access to A-G courses is available.   AVID will also be explored as an opportunity to build skills
necessary to be successful in A-G courses.  PCA teachers would require professional development related
to teaching A-G approved courses and implementation of AVID. Paraprofessional staff could be provided for
extra support during school hours and tutoring services or extended school day could be offered to students
enrolled in A-G courses.



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   9.1  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Business Services Report 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    May 11, 2022                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Nicolaas Hoogeveen  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Nicolaas Hoogeveen   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
   Nicolaas Hoogeveen  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 The monthly financial report for April will be reviewed. 
 
 
 
 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2021-22 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/21 3/15/22 4/15/22 4/15/22 of Budget
(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1. Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 10,139,242$     9,735,319$      7,033,520$    9,784,772$    49,453              A 72.2%
    2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 4,935,686$       5,865,476$      2,144,292$    6,442,767$    577,291            B 36.6%

    3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 10,650,380$     14,208,043$    9,579,997$    14,488,972$  280,929            C 67.4%

    4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 12,731,222$     10,532,544$    5,659,317$    11,376,902$  844,358            D 53.7%

.

      5. TOTAL REVENUES 38,456,530$     40,341,382$    24,417,126$  42,093,413$  1,752,031$       58.0%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 9,350,906$       8,849,547$      6,456,265$    8,858,625$    9,078                E 73.0%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 10,976,797$     10,578,979$    7,312,865$    10,634,426$  55,447              F 69.1%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 9,058,684$       8,662,456$      5,548,981$    8,667,377$    4,921                G 64.1%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,080,028$       1,935,001$      637,648$       1,976,342$    41,341              H 33.0%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 5,875,286$       7,253,205$      3,820,061$    8,046,591$    793,386            I 52.7%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 161,504$          901,069$         91,051$         894,154$       (6,915)              J 10.1%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 344,448$          769,384$         224,515$       775,398$       6,014                K 29.2%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (76,792)$          (84,014)$          (39,058)$        (84,014)$        -                   L 46.5%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -                   M 0.0%

 

       10. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 36,770,861$     38,865,627$    24,052,328$  39,768,899$  903,272            61.9%

C. Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B10)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 185,000$          155,137$         -$               155,137$       -                   N 0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 582,723$          3,836,310$      1,000,000$    3,865,310$    29,000              O 26.1%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -                   P 0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (397,723)$        (3,681,173)$     (1,000,000)$   (3,710,173)$   (29,000)$           27.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 1,287,946$        (2,205,418)$      (635,202)$       (1,385,659)$    819,759$           

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 16,757,177$     17,745,073$    17,745,073$  17,745,073$  -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                 -$               -$               

       Ending Balance 18,045,123$      15,539,655$     17,109,871$   16,359,414$   819,759$           

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance
    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,500$           10,500$           10,500$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 3,366,422$       3,562,484$      3,916,501$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 12,800,522$     9,831,574$      10,250,703$  -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 1,867,679$       2,135,097$      2,181,710$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

April 2022

15.7%848,759$          2,324,514$    364,798$       1,475,755$      1,685,669$       

03/16/22-04/15/22



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget April Board Report

03/16/22-04/15/22

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

Pathways Charter Academy 49,453$             
Adjusting budget for Local Control Funding Formula, Education Protection 

Account, and In‐Lieu taxes from P‐1 certification 

  49,453$             

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

County Office 1,351$               
Adjusting budget to align with updated Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief award allocations

One Stop 575,738$           
Establish budget for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Equity and 

Special Populations grant, and adjusting SB1 grant and Title I budget to 

align with updated award allocations

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) (3,476)$              
Reallocating Expanded Learning Opportunities grant from state to federal 

funds per CDE guidelines 

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 31,608$             
Reallocating Expanded Learning Opportunities grant from state to federal 

funds per CDE guidelines 

Feather River Academy (FRA) (51,930)$            
Adjusting Expanded Learning Opportunities grant and Title I budget to align 

with updated award allocations

Pathways Charter Academy 24,000$             Establishing budget for Title I allocation

577,291$           

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)
County Office 10,929$             Adjusting budget for Mandated Block grant revised allocation

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 270,000$           Establishing budget for Universal Pre‐Kindergarten grant

280,929$           

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)
County Office 59,500$             Establishing budget for 20/21 Worker's Compensation overpayment

One Stop (30,743)$            Adjusting budget to account for delayed class start date

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 459,077$           Establishing budget for Expanded Learning Opportunities Consortium

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 6,014$               Adjusting budget to align with 21‐22 Facilities excess costs rates

Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) 350,154$           Adjusting budget to align with updated allocations

Various departments 356$                  Miscellaneous adjustments

844,358$           

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)
One Stop (5,604)$              Adjusting Culinary budget to align with actuals

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 35,592$             Establishing budget for Expanded Learning Opportunities Consortium

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (6,813)$              
Adjusting budget for end of year staffing projections and moving budget to 

services

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 1,740$               Adjusting budget to align with actuals

Feather River Academy (FRA) (15,837)$            Establishing budget for Title I allocation

9,078$               



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget April Board Report

03/16/22-04/15/22

Amount Explanation of Differences
F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)

One Stop 57,323$             
Establish budget for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Equity and 

Special Populations grant, and adjusting SB1 grant and Title I budget to 

align with updated award allocations

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (1,875)$              
Adjusting budget for end of year staffing projections and moving budget to 

services

Various departments (1)$                     Miscellaneous Adjustments

55,447$             

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)

One Stop 5,121$               
Establish budget for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Equity and 

Special Populations grant, and adjusting SB1 grant and Title I budget to 

align with updated award allocations

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 6,813$               Adjusting budget for end of year staffing projections

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (2,302)$              
Adjusting budget for end of year staffing projections and moving budget to 

services

Feather River Academy (FRA) (5,719)$              Establishing budget for Title I allocation

Various departments 1,008$               Miscellaneous Adjustments

4,921$               

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)

County Office 14,005$             Adjusting budget to align with cost of toner, recognition gifts, and servers

Special Education 10,602$             
Adjusting budget to align with technology purchases for medical mini 

grants

One Stop (13,774)$            Reducing budget from fee based culinary class supplies

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 6,914$               Adjusting budget to align with laptop purchases

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) (2,215)$              Reducing budget for Medical Assistant program

Feather River Academy (FRA) 2,246$               Adjusting budget to align with picnic table purchase

Pathways Charter Academy 21,640$             Establishing budget for Title I allocation

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 1,867$               Adjusting budget to align with actuals to get through end of year

Various departments 56$                    Miscellaneous Adjustments

41,341$             

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)
County Office 4,729$               Adjusting budget for travel and conference

Special Education 20,010$             
Adjusting budget to align with actuals for student meals due to increase in 

pre‐school

One Stop 501,214$           Adjusting budget to align with Equity and Special Populations carry over

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 251,522$           
Establishing budget for Universal Pre‐Kindergarten grant and adjusting 

budget to match actuals

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 9,911$               Increasing budget for services due to reduced salary projections

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 6,278$               Adjusting budget for dues and membership and other operating expenses

Feather River Academy (FRA) 2,171$               Increasing budget for Western Association of Schools and Colleges expenses

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) (2,449)$              Adjusting budget to align with professional development

793,386$           



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget April Board Report

03/16/22-04/15/22

Amount Explanation of Differences
J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

County Office (6,915)$              Adjusting budget for technology purchases

(6,915)$              

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 6,014$               Adjusting budget to align with 21‐22 Facilities excess costs rates

6,014$               

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                       

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

-$                       

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

-$                       

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)
Shady Creek Outdoor School 29,000$             Adjusting budget to align with cafeteria expenses

29,000$             

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                       

Net Change in Current Year Budget 819,759$           



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   9.2  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   May 11, 2022            
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of January 31, 2022 from the County Treasurer will be  
presented.  
  
 
 
 
 





















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  9.3  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Quarterly Report of Surplus Property 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    March 9, 2022                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
    X  Reports/Presentation 
 
    Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Lindsay Linker 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
In accordance with Board Policy 3270, the County Superintendent of Schools prepares  
and presents a quarterly report to the Board of items under $25,000 in value that are  
being declared surplus. 
  
 
 
 
 













          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   9.4  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    May 11, 2022                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor    Value     Purpose 
  Early Risers Kiwanis Club of YC $1,000.00   ATP classes   
  Schools First Federal Credit Union    $4,500.00   SCSOS Educators of the Year Dinner 
 

21-22 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $1,637.00 $5,500.00  $7,137.00 

 Total Donations-Value $1,259.43 $0.00   $1,259.43 
Total Donations  $2896.43 $5,500.00  $8,396.43 
 

 







          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No. 9.5 
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Facilities Update 
                                        
 
DATE OF BOARD MEETING:  May 11, 2022  
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
     Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 x  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
A monthly update on facilities will be presented to the Board. 
 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  10.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Feather River Academy 2022-2023 School Calendar 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    May 11, 2022               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 John Kovach  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
   Brian Gault  
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Approve the 2022-2023 School Calendar for Feather River Academy 
  
 
 
 
 



FEATHER RIVER ACADEMY  
STUDENT ATTENDANCE CALENDAR  

2022-2023
Tentative

Legal Holiday  
M T W TH F

Student Non Attendance Day
 Minimum Day 8 9 10 11 12

End of Quarter 15 16 17 18 19
Extended School Year 22 23 24 25 26  
Staff Work Day 29 30 31 18

M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21  
 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28  
16 26 27 28 29 30 September 5, 2022 Labor Day 31 21

November 11, 2022 Veteran's Day
November 24, 2022 Thanksgiving Day

M T W TH F December 25, 2022 Christmas Day M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 January 1, 2023 New Year's Day 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 January 16, 2023 Martin Luther King Day 5 6 7 8 9
 14 15 16 17 18 February 17, 2023 Lincoln's Birthday (obser 12 13 14 15 16  

21 22 23 24 25 February 20, 2023 President's Day (observe 19 20 21 22 23
16 28 29 30 May 29, 2023 Memorial Day 26 27 28 29 30 13

M T W TH F M T W TH F
2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3
9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10

 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17  
23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24

20 30 31 27 28 14

M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7

 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14
 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21
 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28
23 27 28 29 30 31 15

84
M T W TH F 96 M T W TH F  
1 2 3 4 5 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9

 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16
 22 23 24 25 26 44 19 20 21 22 23
22 29 30 31 40 2

47 Days 180
49 Approved by Board 

  January 2023 February 2023

August 2022
Beginning & End of School First Day August 8, 2022 

Last Day June 2, 2023 

September 2022 October 2022

Legal /Observed Holidays

November 2022 December 2022

Student Non-Attendance Days

November 21-25, 2022
Dec. 19, 2022 - Jan. 2, 2023

April 10-14, 2023

May 2023

March 2023 April 2023
Extended School Year
September 26-30, 2022
February 21-24, 2023

June 5-23, 2023

4th Quarter = 

June 2023First Semester =
Second Semester =

1st Quarter = 
2nd Quarter = 
3rd Quarter = 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  11.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Pathways Charter Academy 2022-2023 School Calendar 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    May 11, 2022               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 John Kovach  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Brian Gault     
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Approve the 2022-2023 School Calendar for Pathways Charter Academy 
  
 
 
 
 



PATHWAYS CHARTER ACADEMY  
STUDENT ATTENDANCE CALENDAR  

2022-2023
Tentative

Legal Holiday  
M T W TH F

Student Non Attendance Day
 Minimum Day 8 9 10 11 12

End of Quarter 15 16 17 18 19
Extended School Year 22 23 24 25 26  
Staff Work Day 29 30 31 18

M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21  
 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28  
16 26 27 28 29 30 September 5, 2022 Labor Day 31 21

November 11, 2022 Veteran's Day
November 24, 2022 Thanksgiving Day

M T W TH F December 25, 2022 Christmas Day M T W TH F
1 2 3 4 January 1, 2023 New Year's Day 1 2 3

7 8 9 10 11 January 16, 2023 Martin Luther King Day 5 6 7 8 9
 14 15 16 17 18 February 17, 2023 Lincoln's Birthday (obser 12 13 14 15 16  

21 22 23 24 25 February 20, 2023 President's Day (observe 19 20 21 22 23
16 28 29 30 May 29, 2023 Memorial Day 26 27 28 29 30 13

M T W TH F M T W TH F
2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3
9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10

 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17  
23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24

20 30 31 27 28 14

M T W TH F M T W TH F
1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7

 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14
 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21
 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28
23 27 28 29 30 31 15

84
M T W TH F 96 M T W TH F  
1 2 3 4 5 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9

 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16
 22 23 24 25 26 44 19 20 21 22 23
22 29 30 31 40 2

47 Days 180
49 Approved by Board 

  January 2023 February 2023

August 2022
Beginning & End of School First Day August 8, 2022 

Last Day June 2, 2023 

September 2022 October 2022

Legal /Observed Holidays

November 2022 December 2022

Student Non-Attendance Days

November 21-25, 2022
Dec. 19, 2022 - Jan. 2, 2023

April 10-14, 2023

May 2023

March 2023 April 2023
Extended School Year
September 26-30, 2022
February 21-24, 2023

June 5-23, 2023

4th Quarter = 

June 2023First Semester =
Second Semester =

1st Quarter = 
2nd Quarter = 
3rd Quarter = 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   12.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Resolution No. 21-22-XII Adopting Conflict of Interest Code 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          May 11, 2022        
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Maggie Nicoletti   
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Superintendent Tom Reusser   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Superintendent Tom Reusser  
  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:  
The County Board shall adopt a resolution that specifies the terms of its Conflict of 
Interest Code, designates any consultant positions required to complete Conflict of  
Interest reporting, and establishes disclosure categories required for each position. 
 
Revisions to Board Bylaw 9270 Conflict of Interest were approved at the second reading 
at the April 13, 2022 Board Meeting. 
 



 

 

Sutter County Board of Education 
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-22-XII 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
 
 
Board Bylaw E 9270  
 
WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code 87300-87313, requires each public 
agency in California to adopt a conflict of interest code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sutter County Board of Education has previously adopted a local conflict of 
interest code; and 
 
WHEREAS, past and future amendments to the Political Reform Act and implementing 
regulations may require conforming amendments to be made to the County Board's conflict of 
interest code; and 
 
WHEREAS, a regulation adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, 2 CCR 18730, 
provides that incorporation by reference of the terms of that regulation, along with an agency- 
specific appendix designating positions and disclosure categories shall constitute the adoption  
and amendment of a conflict of interest code in conformance with Government Code 87300 
and 87306; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board has recently reviewed its positions, and the duties of each 
position, and has determined that changes to the current conflict of interest code are necessary; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, any earlier resolutions, bylaws, and/or appendices containing the County Board's 
conflict of interest code shall be rescinded and superseded by this resolution and Appendix; 
and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sutter County Board of Education adopts the 
Conflict of Interest Code including its Appendix of Designated Positions and Disclosure 
Categories. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11th day of May, 2022 at a meeting, by the following vote: 
 
Roll Call: McJunkin _____; Lachance _____; Richmond _____; Singh _____; Turner _____. 
 
AYES: ___   NOES: ___   ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
____________________________                        ______________________________________ 
June McJunkin, President                             Tom Reusser, Ex-Officio Secretary 
Sutter County Board of Education                          Sutter County Board of Education 

 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   13.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Legal Services Agreement between the Board and 
 Lozano Smith, Attorneys at Law 
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          May 11, 2022        
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
  Maggie Nicoletti    
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Superintendent Tom Reusser   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Superintendent Tom Reusser   
 
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
Legal Service Agreement between the SCSOS Board and Lozano Smith, Attorneys at Law, 
is submitted for Board review and approval. 
 
 
 















14.0





          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.  15.0 
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  WASC Self Study Feather River Academy 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   May 11, 2022               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
    x  Reports/Presentation 
 
   Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Brian Gault, John Kovach 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Brian Gault  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Brian Gault   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
  
The Feather River Academy WASC Self-Study was initially launched in Fall 2020 and the 
visiting committee was scheduled to visit in Fall 2021. Due to a variety of factors  
including COVID, the WASC visit was postponed until Spring 2022.  
 
The Self-Study Visit was conducted April 25-27, 2022. The accreditation status 
recommendation along with a summary of the visiting committee’s findings are being 
presented tonight.    
 
 


	1.0 Agenda 5-11-22
	2.0 AI Minutes
	2.1 Minutes April 13 2022
	3.0 AI IT Department Update
	4.0 AI SCSOS A-G Block Grant Approval
	4.1 SCSOS A-G Completion Improvement Grant
	5.0 AI PCA A-G Block Grant Approval
	5.1 PCA A-G Completion Improvement Grant
	6.0 AI Board Report
	6.1 Apr Board Report
	6.2 AI Investment Report
	6.3 InvestmentReport
	6.4 (a)AI Quarterly Report of Surplus
	6.4 (b)Surplus List
	6.5 AI Donations
	6.6 Schools First Federal Credit Union
	6.7 Early riser Kiwanis
	6.8 AI Facilities Update
	7.0 AI FRA Calendar
	7.1 FRA Tentative calendar
	Sheet1

	8.0 AI PCA Calendar
	8.1 PCA Tentative calendar
	Sheet1

	9.0 AI Resolution Adopting Conflict of Interest
	9.1 Resolution Adopting Conflict of Interest Code
	10.0 AI Legal Services
	10.1 Agreement for Legal Services
	11.0 AI & Williams Report
	12.0 AI FRA WASC Update



